
 
 

Focus Area Rehabilitation Program 
Application Process – Last Revised August 2016 

  

  
Submit complete applications to:  

City of Rockford – City Hall  
425 East State Street – Rockford, IL  61104 
Community & Economic Development Department – 2nd Floor 
 

A complete application includes the following: 

1. Application with all applicable questions answered, signed and dated. 
2. $25 application fee. EXACT CASH OR CHECK ONLY 
3. All applicable qualifying documentation. See checklist.   

Incomplete application packets will not be accepted. 

 

 

Interviews will be scheduled after City staff has determined the following: 

1. Applicant’s household income is below program maximum. 
2. Property is owned by the applicant. “Buying on Contract” or “Agreement 

for Deed” are not acceptable forms of ownership for the FAR program. 
3. Property is located within the city of Rockford. 
4. Property is a single family detached home (not a duplex or multi-family 

dwelling) and valued below $111,000 
5. The only code violations on the property are ones to be addressed 

through the program. All hoarding, debris removal, vehicle storage or 
weed violations must have been corrected. 

6. There are no outstanding code violations on any other property owned by 
the applicant. 

7. All mortgages, real estate property taxes, and homeowner’s insurance 
premiums are current. 

8. Applicant has not been assisted in the past. 
9. Applicant does not have criminal record relating to drugs, weapons, 

loitering, or solicitation within the last 5 years. 
10. Applicant is not delinquent on State or Federal taxes. 
11. Applicant does not have any liens, judgements other than current 

mortgages. 

Prior to an interview City staff may request additional documentation to make sure 
applicant meets the requirements stated above. If applicant is unable to provide 
information within 3 months of when City staff made the request, the application will be 
withdrawn and applicant is welcome to submit a new complete application package 
anytime in the future.  

Submitting Application 

 Prior to Interview 



 
 

 

 

If additional documentation was requested at the interview, applicants have 3 months 
from the interview to provide the information. If not provided, the application will be 
withdrawn and applicant is welcome to submit a new complete application package 
anytime in the future. 

Inspections will be scheduled after City staff confirms eligibility. However, an applicant 
is not approved for the program until it is determined that the property is eligible as well. 

A Work Item List outlines all the work that will be completed to make sure the property 
meets the following: 

1. State and City code and zoning ordinances 
2. The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) requirements, 

which includes but is not limited to the following: 
a. All major systems shall have a remaining useful life for a minimum 

of 5 years. Major systems generally includes the following: 
i. Structural support 
ii. Roofing 
iii. Cladding and weatherproofing (windows, doors, siding, 

gutters) 
iv. Plumbing 
v. Electrical 
vi. Heating 
vii. Ventilation 
viii. Air conditioning 

b. Ensure there are no lead based paint hazards. This program DOES 
NOT remove lead from the property. Applicants should refer to the 
“Protect Your Family from Lead” brochure for instructions on how to 
maintain their property. 

c. The property is accessible for individuals with physical disabilities. 

City staff only includes on the Work Item List what has to be done according to the 
program regulations. Therefore, if the estimate or actual bids exceed the program 
maximum, applicant has 3 months from the notification to come up with the money or 
reduce the cost; e.g. get a loan, complete some of the work on your own. If unable to 
reduce the cost, the application will be withdrawn and applicant is welcome to submit a 
new complete application package anytime in the future. 

After Interview 



Focus Area Rehabilitation Program  
Qualifying Documentation Checklist 

To determine initial eligibility please submit as part of your application 
packet all applicable income and asset documentation for everyone 
eighteen (18) and over living in the home.   

Please keep in mind the following: 

 Original documents (check stubs, award letters, etc.) must
be submitted with your application in person.  A City
representative will be happy to make copies and return the
originals at the time an application is submitted.

 Each applicant’s financial situation is different and may
require a City representative to request additional
information.

Forms: 

Focus Area Rehabilitation Program Application 

Request for Transcript of Tax Return (if applicable, see Tax Info 
Section) 

Federal Program Eligibility Release Form 

Authorization for Investigation 

Income Information (for everyone over the age of 18 living in the home) 

Two months of pay check stubs 

Social Security Award Letter 

Court Ordered Child Support statement 

For Rental Income: Copy of leases for all occupied rental units, a 
statement for each mortgage loan indicating what the current 
loan balance is.  

Any other documents indicating income 

Tax Information (for everyone over the age of 18 living in the home) 

Most recent Federal tax return 

Most recent State tax return 

 W-2 Statements 

If you do not have tax returns or W-2’s, please complete the 
4506-T included in the application packet. 
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Asset Information (for everyone over the age of 18 living in the home) 

 Six most recent statements for all checking accounts  

 One most recent statement on all savings accounts, including 
Certificate of Deposits, IRA’s, 401(k) and stocks, etc. 

 

 Documentation of assets owned, such as statement indicating 
the cash value of a life insurance policy, an assessment of other 
property owned, etc. 

 

Other Information: 

 Letter from doctor, if house modifications are needed for 
individuals with physical disabilities living in the home. 

 

 Divorce decree  

 A statement for each mortgage loan documenting that it is 
current. 

 

 Proof of Homeowner’s Insurance.  

 
Note: The City Representative taking your application will need to see and copy 
the following items:  
 

 Your original Illinois driver’s license or Illinois identification card  
 Your original social security card 

 
Please bring them with you when you submit your application packet.  
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Rev. 7.21.16 Please fill out reverse of application

Owner Occupied Rehabilitation Program Pre-Application

Return completed application:
City of Rockford-Community & Economic Development Dept. – 2nd Floor

425 East State Street
Rockford, IL 61104, 888-394-7293 (fax)

Please select
program

applying for:

[   ] Focus Area Rehabilitation Program (nonrefundable $25 application fee –
payable by cash or check made out to City of Rockford) - Start with Section A.
[   ] Water Hook Up Program – Start with Section B.

Section A.
Have you read the flyer and understand the requirements of the
program? [   ] Yes     [   ] No

Do you live in the home that you need repairs made? [   ] Yes     [ ] No

Is it a single family (not a duplex or multifamily) home? [   ] Yes     [   ] No
Do you own the home? Contract buyers are not considered home
owners. [   ] Yes     [   ] No
If your application was denied in the past due to the estimated costs
exceeding the program limits, were any of the repairs on your work
item list completed since then?

[   ] Yes     [   ] No
[   ] N/A

If you answered “yes” to all the questions above, move on to Section B.

If you answered “no” to any of the questions, this program cannot assist you.
Section B.
Applicant:

Co-applicant:

Property Address & Zip Code:

Mailing Address & Zip Code (if different):
Phone Number (including area code) – Work/Home/Cell:
Section C.

Is there anyone living in the home that is physically disabled? [   ] Yes     [   ] No

Is there anyone 62 years of age or older living in the home? [   ] Yes     [   ] No

Are children (age 6 and under) regularly occupying the home? [   ] Yes     [   ] No
Have you received assistance through a City of Rockford program in the
past? [   ] Yes     [   ] No

If YES, which program? Approx. When?

How many people are living in the property?

List the income of all the people (age 18 & older) living in the property:



I/We, the undersigned, certify the information in this pre-application. It is true and correct
as of the date set forth opposite my/our signature(s). Any intentional or negligent
misrepresentation of information contained in this pre-application will result in
disqualification from the program.

I/We provided the information on this application for the purpose of obtaining credit.

I/We authorize verification of any information contained in this pre-application.

I/we understand the information I/we have provided on this pre-application may be
disseminated to other Departments within the City of Rockford, to the Winnebago County
Health Department, to Northwestern Illinois Area Agency on Aging, and/or to RAMP to
determine possible eligibility for participation in other programs.

X
Sign & Date

X
Sign & Date

Section D.
How did you hear about this program? Mark all that apply.
[ ] Internet

___ Social Media ( ___ Facebook ___ Nixle ___ Next Door ___ Twitter)
___ HUD web site
___ City of Rockford web site

[ ] Referral from: ___________________________
Example: Alderman, City Code Enforcement, Winnebago County Health Department, HomeStart, etc.

[ ] Event: _________________________________
Example: Neighborhood Group Meeting, National Night Out, Housing Counseling Class, etc.

[ ] Media:
___ Newspaper: __________________
___ TV Station/News Show: __________________

[ ] Neighbor/Friend/Family Member







Federal Program Eligibility Release Form 

Rev. 2-5-15 Continued on reverse 

City of Rockford Community & Economic 

Development Department 

Neighborhood Development Division 

425 East State Street 

Rockford, IL  61104 

Purpose:  Your signature on this Federal Program Eligibility Release Form, and the signatures of each member of your 

household who is 18 years of age or older, authorizes the above-named organizations to obtain information from a third 

party relative to your eligibility and continued participation in state and/or federally funded program. 

Privacy Act Notice Statement: The Department of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) is requiring the collection of 

the information derived from this form to determine an applicant’s eligibility in a federal program and the amount of 

assistance necessary using federal funds.  This information will be used to establish level of benefit on the federal program; 

to protect the Government’s financial interest; and to verify the accuracy of the information furnished.  It may be released 

to appropriate Federal, state, and local agencies when relevant to civil, criminal, or regulatory investigators, and to 

prosecutors.  Failure to provide any information may result in a delay or rejection of your eligibility approval.  The 

Department is authorized to ask for this information by the National Affordable Housing Act of 1990. 

Financial Privacy Notice:  The U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development and the Neighborhood 

Development Division have a right of access to financial records held by a financial institution in connection with the 

consideration or administration of assistance for which you have applied. Financial records involving your transaction will 

be available to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development without further notice or authorization but will 

not be disclosed or released to another government agency or department without your consent except as required or 

permitted by law. This notice is a requirement of the Right to Financial Privacy Act of 1978. 

Instructions:  Each adult member of the household must sign a Federal Program Eligibility Release Form prior to the 

receipt of benefit. 

Authorization:  I authorize the above-named organizations to obtain information about me and my household that is 

pertinent to eligibility for participation in the Federal Program. 

I/we acknowledge that: 

(1) A photocopy of this form is as valid as the original. 

(2) All adult household members will sign this form and cooperate with the applicant(s) in this process. 

Head of Household: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

9



Federal Program Eligibility Release Form 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 

Household Member: 

Printed Name: ____________________________________________________________ Date: _____________ 

Signature: _________________________________________________________________________________ 
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Todd Cagnoni 
 Director 

Community and Economic 
Development Department 

City of Rockford, Illinois USA 
425 East State Street  Rockford, Illinois  61104-1068  USA 
(779) 348-7162  (815) 967-6933 fax  www.rockfordil.gov 

Excellence Everywhere 

DEPARTMENT OF COMMUNITY & ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT 

Authorization for Investigation of Criminal History and Background 

Signature of this form must be witnessed by a notary or a City employee when 

the application is submitted. 

The undersigned hereby authorizes designated employees of the City of Rockford Department of 

Community Development to investigate his/her criminal history and background.  The undersigned 

waives any claim against the City of Rockford, The City of Rockford Police Department, and all 

employees and agents for the City of Rockford and City of Rockford Police Department for any claim 

which may arise from said investigation or transmission of any and all information discovered in said 

investigation.  The undersigned further understands that any and all information discovered during said 

investigation will be used in determining the undersigned’s eligibility to receive funds, aid, or resources 

from the City of Rockford. 

I/We have read the above listed paragraph and fully understand the content thereof. 

______________________________________ ___________________________ 

Signature Date 

______________________________________ ___________________________ 

Signature Date 

_______________________________________ ___________________________ 

Witness Date 
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